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UNITED STATES lliSTRJCT COURT 

C ENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA, WESTERN DIVISION 

14 RENAISSANCE PICTURES, LTD., 

15 

16 v. 

Plaintiff, 

17 AWARD PTCTURES, LLC, 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Defendant. 

Casc~oY 12-38 05 -bs: 
COMPLAINT c.:rd~ 
(Injunctive Relief Sought) 

(1) False Designation of Origin, 
15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(l)(A); 

(2) Federal False Advertising, 
15 U.S.C. § ll25(a)(l)(oJ; 

(3) Trademark Infringement and Unfair 
Competition Under California 
Common Law and Cal. Bus. & Prof. 
Code § 17200; and 

( 4) Injury to Business Reputation 
Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 1424 7 

JURY 1RIAL DEMANDED 

25 Plaintiff Renaissance Pictures, Ltd. ("Plaintiff' or "Renaissance"), by its 

26 attorneys Fross Zelnick Lehrman & Zissu, P.C. and Caldwell Leslie & Proctor, P .C., 

27 for its complaint against Defendant Award Pictures, LLC ("Award Pictures" or 

28 "Defendant") alleges as follows: 



1 SUBSTANCE OF THE ACTION 

2 I. This action arises out ofDefendant's attempt to trade on the cult hit EVIL 

3 DEAD movie series and other licensed entertainments by using the name and mark 

4 EVIL DEAD as or as part of a title tor a motion picture, and in connection with the 

5 promotion, development and production of such motion picture, which use violates 

6 Plaintiffs rights in its EVIL DEAD trademark in connection with identical and/or 

7 highly related goods and services. Based on Defendant's unlawful conduct alleged 

a herein, Plaintiff asserts claims for false designation of origin and unfair competition 

9 under §43(a)(l)(A) ofthe Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a)(l)(A), false advertising 

10 under Section43(a)(l)(B) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §I 125(a)(l)(B), and 

11 substantial and related claims under California state and common law. Plaintiff 

12 seeks, inter alia, injunctive relief; an accounting and award of Defendant's profits 

13 and Plaintiffs damages flowing from Defendant's infringing activities, which 

14 amounts should be trebled; prejudgment interest; attorneys' fees; and any other 

15 relief the Court deems just and proper. 

16 PARTIES 

17 2. Plaintiff Renaissance Pictures, Ltd. is a limited partnership organized and 

10 existing under the laws ofMichigan, with its principal place ofbusiness located at 

19 450 North Roxbury Drive, gth Floor, Beverly Hills, California 90210. At all relevant 

2 0 times, Renaissance Pictures, Ltd. used or otherwise controlled the use of the mark 

21 EVIL DEAD. 

22 3. Upon information and belief, Defendant Award Pictures, LLC is a 

23 Connecticut limited liability company doing business at 112 Cannen 2 Hill, New 

24 Milford, Connecticut 06776-4511, and is using and attempting to market motion 

2 5 pictures under the names EVIL DEAD 4: Consequences and EVIL DEAD: Genesis of 

2 6 the Necronomicon. Award Pictures has exhibited at the annual American Film 

2 7 Market trade show in Santa Monica, California, advertised and promoted its services 

2 B under the EVIL DEAD mark in this district and solicited business in this district. 
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1 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2 4. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 

J Section 39 of the Trademark Act of 1946 (the "Lanham Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 1121 and 

4 under Sections 1331, 1338(a) and 1338(b) of the Judicial Code, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 

5 1338(a)~(b ). The Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims under 

6 Section 1367(a) oftbe Judicial Code, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1367(a). 

7 5. Upon information and belief, this Court has personal jurisdiction over 

8 Defendant because Defendant has solicited business in this district, including by 

9 attending the annual American Film Market trade show in Santa Monica, California, 

10 has advertised and promoted its services in this district, including in Variety, 

11 promotes its movie production services, including by promoting its movies and 

12 television projects on a website accessible in California, and is targeting the motion 

13 picture industry in California, and the exercise of jurisdiction over it is not 

14 inconsistent with the Constitution of California or the United States. Cal. Code Civ. 

15 Proc. § 410.10. 

lG 6. Upon information and belief, venue is proper in this district pursuant to 

17 Section 139l(b) and 1400(b) ofthe Judicial Code, 28 U.S.C. §§ 139I(b) and 

18 1400(b), because a substantial part of the events at issue and Defendant's acts of 

19 infringement have occurred in this district and Plaintiff is suffering harm in this 

?. o district. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A. 

FACTS COMM:ONTO 
ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF 

Renaissance and Director Sam Raimi 

7. Plaintiff Renaissance was formed in 1979 by its three general partners -­

writer-director-producer Sam Raimi, producer Robert Tapert and actor-producer 

Bruce Campbell- for the purpose of producing the trio's first motion picture entitJed 

The Evil Dead. Since its formation, Renaissance has continued to produce numerous 

motion pictures, including but not limited to the motion pictures The Evil Dead; Evil 
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1 Dead II; Evil Dead Ill: Army of Darkness; Darkman; Hard Target; and Timecop, 

2 and the extremely successful television series Hercules: The Legendary Journeys 

3 andXena: Warrior Princess. 

4 8. Sam Raimi, who has directed all of the EVIL DEAD films, is one of the 

5 most sought-after directors in Hollywood. In the 1990's, Mr. Raimi directed 

6 numerous critically praised films, including Darkman, The Quick and the Dead, A 

7 Simple Plan and For The Love of the Game. Then in 2002, he directed the 

8 blockbuster Spiderman motion picture, which grossed more than $800 million 

9 worldwide. In 2004 and 2007, he directed Spiderman 2 and Spiderman 3, 

10 respectively, which collectively grossed another $1.7 billion. All three films set 

11 opening day box office records upon their theatrical release in the United States and 

12 all three are included in the 25 highest-grossing domestic films of all time. 

13 B. The EVIL DEAD Motion Picture Trilogy 

14 9. The Renaissance team of Sam Raimi, Robert Tapert and Bruce Campbell 

15 are renowned for their series of EVIL DEAD motion pictures, which are among the 

16 top horror I cult movies of all time. 

17 10. rn the late 1970's, the team collaborated on a 30-minute horror film 

18 entitled Into The Woods, an abbreviated version of what they envisioned for their 

19 first feature film. Into The Woods was well-received and enabled the Renaissance 

2 o team to secure the investors they needed to fund The Evil Dead. 

21 11. Co-written (an original screenplay) and direc!ed by Sam Raimi, and 

22 featuring an iconic performance by Bruce Campbell as lead character Ashley J. 

2 3 Williams (Ash for short), The Evil Dead, which was first released theatrically in the 

24 U.S. in 1983, is a horror film about a group of five friends that travel to a cabin in the 

2 5 woods where they find an ancient Sumerian text called The Necronomicon Ex~ 

2 6 Mortis ( a.k.a., The Necronomicon, translated in the film as the "Book of the Dead"), 

2 7 along with an audio recording containing incantations from the Nccronomicon that 

28 summon evil spirits when spoken aloud. Made for less than half a million dollars, 
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1 the film was an enormous success for a movie in the horror genre, grossing more 

2 than $29 million theatrically to date. 

3 12. Years after its original release, The Evil Dead continues to draw 

4 audiences and is recognized as a cult I horror classic. In its 2010 list of the 50 Best 

5 Horror Movies of all time, movie review site Rotten Tomatoes ranked The Evil Dead 

6 at # 11, ahead of horror classics such as Jaws, Rosemary's Baby, The Birds and 

7 Silence of the Lambs. In 2010, Wired magazine likewise ranked The Evil Dead 

· 8 among the Best 25 Horror Movies of all Time. The New York Times referred to The 

9 Evil Dead as the film that secured "young director [Sam Raimi's] cult status as a 

10 creative force to be reckoned with." And on September 30, 2011, Time magazine 

1 1 ranked The Evil Dead as among the Top 10 Haunted House Movies of all time, in the 

12 company of films such as The Shining and Poltergeist. 

13 13. The popularity of The Evil Dead led the Renaissance trio to reunite for 

14 Evil Dead II: Dead By Dawn, with Mr. Raimi as co-writer, director and co-producer, 

15 Mr. Campbell as actor and co-producer, Mr. Tapert as co-producer and DeLaurentis 

16 Entertainment Group as co-producer. Released in 1987, Evil Dead II: Dead By 

17 Dawn features the return of Ash, the lone survivor from the first filrn played again by 

18 Bruce Campbell, as he continues his battle against the evil spirits conjured by the 

19 Necronomicon, this time armed with a shovel, a shotgun and a chainsaw. While 

2 o maintaining the horror imagery of the original, Mr. Raimi injected the sequel with a 

2 1 comedic I slapstick edge. Mr. Raimi's styling, coupled with Mr. Cam_ebell's inspired 

22 physical perfotmance (which includes a no-holds-barred brawl with his own 

2 3 possessed hand, culminating with him vindictively "lopp[ing) it off at the wrist',), 

24 has led many to agree that Evil Dead 11 surpasses its predecessor in terms of cult 

25 renown. 

26 14. Yahoo says of the sequel, "Evil Dead II is the second installment in Sam 

2 7 Raimi's infamous cult trilogy of horror/comedy films, arguably the best jn his full 

28 lineup .... " The New York Times refers to Evil Dead II: "This high-octane semi-
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1 sequel to Sam Raimi's cult hit The Evil Dead has nearly eclipsed its predecessor's 

2 reputation thanks to an endless barrage of hyperkinetic camera acrobatics, rapid-fire 

3 editing and "splatstick11 gore effects ... ,, Rotten Tomatoes ranked Evil Dead II: Dead 

4 By Dawn as No. 20 in its 201 0 list of the 50 Dest Horror Movies. To date, the 

5 second installment ofthe EV£L DEAD trilogy has grossed theatrically more than $12 

6 million in the United States. 

7 15. The final seconds of Evil Dead II has hero Ash and his automobile 

8 transported back in time to the middle ages, which is where the third installment of 

9 the series, entitled Army of Darkness: Evil Dead Ill, begins. Released theatrically in 

1 o the United States in 1993, Army of Darkness: Evil Dead Ill again brought together 

11 the Renaissance production teum ofMr. Raimi (co-writer, director), Mr. Campbell 

12 (lead actor, co-producer) and Mr. Tapert (co-producer), and was co-produced by 

13 Renaissance, Dino De f Jaurentis Corrununications and Universal Pictures. Army of 

14 Darkness: Evil Dead Ill continued the slapstick approach of Evil Dead II, following 

15 shotgun and chainsaw-toting Ash as he reluctantly fights alongside a medieval 

16 village besieged by spirits and demons that were released by the power of the 

17 Necronomicon. The gross domestic theatrical revenues to date for the third 

18 installment in the EVIL DEAD series exceeds $11.5 million. 

19 16. Each film in the EVlL DEAD trilogy has been shown in theaters 

2 o throughout the United States, and each continues to be shown regularly at horror film 

21 festivals and conventions, resulting in a combined domestic, theatrical gross of more 

22 than $50 million to date. Euch EVIL DEAD picture also is avaHable in a variety of 

2 3 home viewing formats) including VHS, DVD) Blu-Ray and on-demand streaming 

24 (e.g., through Amazon). 

25 17. Given the cult status of the EVIL DEAD trilogy, dozens ofwebsites, 

2 6 fanzines, books and blogs have been created dedicated to the films, such as Raimi-

21 Zine (fanzine), Bruce On A Stick (tanzine), The Evil Dead Companion (book), The 

2 8 Evil Dead Blog, deadites.net, evildeadnews.com, bookofthedead. ws and 
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1 ladiesoftheevildead.com to name a few. All of these sources recognize that 

2 Renaissance is the exclusive source of the films. 

3 18. Fans of the series have long been eager for another installment. At 

4 motion picture and entertainment conventions and in other interview contexts, Mr. 

5 Raimi and Mr. Campbell have been asked repeatedly whether they would ever make 

6 an Evil Dead 4. Always entertaining the notion of another film, in 2011, the 

7 Renaissance team finally announced that they would be making another EVIL 

8 DEAD motion picture, this time a remake of the original The Evil Dead, which will 

9 once again be co-written by Sam Raimi and co-produced by Mr. Raimi, Mr. 

10 Campbell and Mr. Tapert. Evil Dead, LLC, a company set up by Mr. Raimi, Mr. 

11 Tapert and Mr. Campbell and licensed by Renaissance to use the EVIL DEAD 

12 trademark, is currently in pre-production on the new EVIL DEAD film~ which is 

13 expected to be released some time in 2013. 

14 B. The Enduring EVIL DEAD Brand 

15 19. As is commonly done in order to properly finance and distribute major 

16 motion pictures, Renaissance assigned certain copyright rights in the EVIL DEAD 

17 motion pictures to third party production companies and distributors that were 

18 involved with the films. Renaissance has, however, retained the copyright rights in 

19 the first motion picture The Evil Dead (including sole ownership of character rights 

20 and remake rights, among other rights, including co-ownership of sequel rights), and 

21 is the owner of U.S. Copyright Registration Nos. P A 131098, PAU 411-638 and PA 

2 2 166-69 for the motion picture and its protectable elements. 

23 20. Further, Renaissance is and has remained the owner of all rights in the 

2 4 EVIL DEAD trademark. Indeed, when consumers think of the EVIL DEAD series, 

25 they inevitably think of the Renaissance team- Mr. Raimi, Mr. Campbell and Mr. 

2 6 Tapert- which is the source of all three films and the upcoming fourth film. 

2 7 21. As owner of the EVIL DEAD trademark, Renaissance has entered into a 

2 8 nwnber of licenses for use of the EVIL DEAD trademark, including in connection 
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1 with a series of EVIL DEAD video games, namely, The Evil Dead (1984); Evil 

2 Dead: Hail to the King (2000); Evil Dead: A Fistful of Boomstick (2003) and Evil 

3 Dead: Regeneration (2005). The EVIL DEAD video games all contain plot 

4 elements and characters created by Sam Raimi, and they all feature the vocal 

s performance by Bruce Campbell playing the iconic Ash. Renaissance also 

6 authorized a stage musical production Evil Dead: The Musical, which began in 

7 Canada and has made numerous appearances in the United States including Off-

8 Broadway in New York City. 

9 22. Over the years, Renaissance has offered and licensed for sale various 

1 o merchandise, including dolls, clothing and memorabilia from the fi lms bearing the 

11 EVIL DEAD trademark. Renaissance also licensed an EVIL DEAD comic book 

12 series and a 3-issue paperback literary adaptation of the films penned by Sam Raimi. 

13 23. On Jw1e 1, 2010, Renaissance filed U.S. Trademark Application Serial 

14 No. 85052146 to register the EVTI.., DEAD trademark in connection with 

1 s "entettainment in the nature of theater productions; entertainment media production 

16 services for motion pictures, television and Internet; motion picture film production.'' 

17 24. As a result ofRenaissance' s use of the EVIL DEAD mark and the cult 

18 success of the films and related products, the EVIL DEAD mark has acquired 

1 9 enonnous value, has become famous among the relevant consuming public and 

20 motion picture trade, and is recognized as identifying and distinguishing Renaissance 

21 exclusively and uniquely as the source of goods sold and services provided tlllder the 

22 EVIL DEAD mark. 

23 C. Defendant's Unlawful Conduct 

24 25. In February 2004, approximately two decades after Renaissance first 

2 5 established its rights in the EVIL DEAD mark, years after the EVIL DEAD movies 

2 6 had been commercially and continually shown, and well after EVIL DEAD became 

27 associated exclusively with entertainment produced and/or licensed by Renaissance, 

2 8 Renaissance received a letter from Defendant A ward Pictures claiming it had the 
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1 right to make a motion picture entitled Evil Dead 4: Consequences. Based on the 

2 letter and the proposed title of the motion picture, it was evident that Defendant 

3 contemplated and intended to cause consumers to falsely identify Evil Dead 4: 

4 Consequences as a fourth installment in Renaissance' famous EVIL DEAD series. 

5 Renaissance responded to Defendant's letter by informing Defendant that any 

6 attempt by Defendant to make a motion picture under the EVIL DEAD name and 

7 mark would constitute a violation of Renaissance's copyright and trademark rights. 

8 26. Following the exchange of letters, Renaissance did not hear from 

9 Defendant again (until recently as alleged below), and to Renaissance's knowledge, 

10 Defendant did not release any motion picture or other entertainment under the EVIL 

11 DEAD name or mark. However, it recently came to Renaissance's attention that 

12 Defendant has announced on its website at www.awardpictures.cqm its "upcoming 

13 series ofEVIL DEAD motion pictures" with EVIL DEAD: Genesis of the 

14 Necronornicon as the first installment. Defendant claims on its website that the film 

15 EVIL DEAD: Genesis of the Necronornicon is "in development." 

16 27. On February 22, 2012, Defendant filed a Notice of Opposition with the 

17 U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (the "USPTO"), Trademark Trial and App~al 

18 Board, against Renaissance's Application Serial No. 85052146 to register the EVIL 

19 DEAD trademark, alleging that it has a ubona fide intent to use the title, and/or, title 

20 element, in Award Pictures' upcoming motion picture productions of, but not limited 

21 to; Evil Dead: Genesis of the Necronomicon; Evil Dead: Genesis of the 

22 Necronomicon, Part 2; Evil Dead: Consequences, and all other Feature Motion 

23 Pictures that use the title, or title element, Evil Dead.~' 

24 28. On information and belief, Defendant is using Renaissance's EVIL 

25 DEAD mark in this manner for the improper purpose of summoning interest in its 

26 own business and films by falsely associating itself with Renaissance's cult hits to 

27 induce investors. 

28 
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1 29. Renaissance never granted any copyright or trademark rights to 

2 Defendant> yet Defendant is advertising and promoting its contemplated EVIL 

3 DEAD films under Renaissance's EVlL DEAD trademark. Such promotion> 

4 development and production of EVIL DEAD motion pictures by Defendant, which 

5 entails prominent usc by Defendant of Renaissance's precise EVIL DEAD trademark 

6 and includes a description of the its forecasted EVIL DEAD movies that holds them 

7 out as a continuation ofRenaiss~ce's EVIL DEAD trilogy, will inevitably confuse 

8 consumers and the motion picture industry into believing that Renaissance is 

9 associated with such motion pictures, when in fact it is not, or that Renaissance has 

10 endorsed or approved such motion pictures~ when in fact it has not. Further, the use 

11 of EVIL DEAD by Defendant falsely describes and otherwise misrepresents 

12 Defendant's movies by creating the erroneous impression that Defendant's films are 

13 a continuation of Renaissance's pre-existing EVIL DEAD trilogy. 

14 30. Renaissance has not reviewed or seen any screenplay, film, video or other 

15 work underlying Defendant's contemplated EVIL DEAD motion pictures, but on 

16 information and belief, any such work would inevitably infringe Renaissance's 

17 copyright rights in The Evil Dead, including key plot elements and character names, 

18 which Defendant refers to in the synopsis of its films as set forth on its website. 

19 Renaissance resetves the right to amend this pleading to assert such a claim to the 

2 0 extent it learns in this proceeding that any such infringing work exists. 

21 31. Upon information and belief, Defendant selected and has used the mark 

22 EVIL DEAD in the titles of its anticipated films and otherwise to promote its 

23 business with actual and constructive knowledge of Renaissance's ownership of 

2 4 and/or exclusive rights to use the EVIL DEAD mark and with the intent to trade off 

25 the significant goodwill symbolized by and the strong industry recognition of the 

26 EVIL DEAD mark. 

27 

28 
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l 
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

2 (False Designation of Origin and Unfair Competition Under 

3 
Section 43(a)(l)(A) of the Federal Trademark Act~ 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(l)(A)) 

4 
32. As a cause of action and grmmd for relief, Plaintiff alleges that Defendant 

is engaged in acts of false designation of origin and unfair competition under§ 43(a) 
5 

of the Federal Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) and incorporates by reference ,f~ 
6 

7 

8 

1 through 31 of the complaint as a part of this count 

33. Defendant's use of the EVIL DEAD mark as alleged above, is likely to 

confuse, mislead, or deceive consumers and the motion picture industry as to the 
9 

10 
origin, source, sponsor::;hip, or affiliation of Defendant's motion pictures and motion 

picture promotion, development and production services, and is likely to cause such 
11 

persons to believe, contrary to fact, that Defendant's motion pictures are created, 
12 

authorized, endorsed or approved by Plaintiff and/or that Defendant's motion picture 
13 

14 

15 

promotion, development and production services are provided, authorized, endorsed 

or sponsored by Plaintiff~ or that Defendant is in some way affiliated with or 

sponsored by Plaintiff. 
16 

17 
34. Defendant's actions in the manner alleged above constitute a false 

18 
designation of origin and unfair competition) which have caused) and are likely to 

cause, confusion, mistake and deception, in violation of§ 43(a)( 1 )(A) of the Federal 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(l)(A). 

35. Defendant's conduct has caused and is causing immediate and irreparable 

injury to Plaintiff and will continue to damage Plaintiff unless enjoined by this 

Court. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

(False Advertising Under Section 43(a)(l)(B) ofthe 
Federal Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. § ll25(a)(l)(B)) 

36. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges that Defendant 

is engaged in acts of false advertising under§ 43(a)(l)(B) ofthe Federal Trademark 
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1 Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(l)(B) and incorporates by reference 1{,11 through 35 of the 

2 complaint as a part of this count. 

3 37. Defendant's use of the EV[L DEAD mark as alleged above in connection 

4 with the advertisement of its motion pictures and its motion picture development and 

5 production services (e.g., in Variety, on the Internet, etc.) misrepresents to consumers 

6 and the motion picture industry the nature and characteristics ofDefendant's motion 

7 pictures and motion picture development and production services by falsely 

8 suggesting that they are part of or associated with Plaintiff's EVIL DEAD franchise 

9 or are otherwise an authorized sequel. 

10 38. Defendant's actions in the manner alleged above constitute false 

11 advertising, which have caused, and are likely to cause, confusion, mistake and 

12 deception, in violation of§ 43(a)(l)(B) of the Federal Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

13 1125(a)(l)(B). 

14 39. Defendanfs conduct has caused and is causing immediate and irreparable 

15 injury to Plaintiff and will continue to damage Plaintiff unless enjoined by this 

16 Court. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

(Trademark Infringement and Unfair Competition Under California Common Law 
And State Law- CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE §17200) 

40. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges that Defendant 

21 is engaged in acts of trademark infringement and unfair competition under California 

22 law and the common law and incorporates by reference 1f1ll through 39 ofthe 

2 3 complaint as a part of this count. 

24 

25 

41. Defendant has copied, used and continues to use a mark or name that is 

identical to Plaintiff's EVIL DEAD mark for goods and services that are highly 
2 6 related or identical to the goods and services that Plaintiff provides under the EVIL 

2 7 DEAD mark in this state. 

28 
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1 42. Defendant's use of the EVIL DEAD mark, which is identical and 

2 confusingly similar to Plaintifrs EVrL DEAD mark, constitutes intentional 

3 appropriation with the intent to cause confusion, mistake and deception as to the 

ll source of Defendant's goods and services. Defendant's use of such name and mark 

5 is for the willful and calcuJated purpose of misappropriating Plaintiff's goodwill and 

6 business reputation, and for the purpose of deceiving the public and trade as to the 

7 nature and origin of Defendant's goods and services, in violation of Plaintiff's rights 

B under the common law of the state of California and the California Unfuir Business 

9 Practices Act, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code§ 17200 et seq. 

1.0 43. Defendant was on notice and had actual knowledge of Plaintiff's 

11 exclusive rights in the EVIL DEAIJ mark before adopting the identical EVIL DEAD 

12 name and mark in connection with its motion pictures and motion picture 

1 3 development and production services. Defendant's use of the EVIL DEAD mark 

14 and name is willful, in bad faith and with full knowledge of Plaintiffs prior use of, 

15 exclusive rights in, and ownership of the EVIL DEAD mark, with full knowledge of 

16 the reputation and goodwill associated with the EVIL DEAD mark, and with full 

17 knowkdge that Defendant have no right, license or authority to use the EVIL DEAD 

lB mark. By using the EVIL DEAD mark and name, Defendant has been unjustly 

19 enriched and Plaintiff has been damaged. 

20 44. Defendanfs conduct has caused and is causing immediate and irreparable 

21 injury to Plaintiff and w~ll continue to damage Plaintiff unless enjoined by this 

22 Court. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. 

23 
FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

24 

25 (Injury To Business Reputation 
California State Law- Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §14247) 

26 
45. As a cause of action and ground for relief, Plaintiff alleges that 

27 
Defendant is engaged in acts that i~jure Plaintiff's business reputation in violation of 

2B 
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1 Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 14247 and incorporates by reference ,i~ 1 through 44 of the 

2 complaint as a part of this count. 

3 46. The EVIL DEAD mark tor entertainment services is famous and 

4 distinctive in the State of California and became famous and distinctive long before 

s Defendant commenced use of the EVIL DEAD name and mark in connection with 

6 its goods and services. In California, the EVIL DEAD mark is exclusively identified 

7 with Plaintiff and its goods and services and is immediately recognizable to 

8 consumers as signifying the goods and services ofPlaintiff. 

9 47. Defendant's use of the name and mark EVIL DEAD as alleged above is 

10 likely to dilute the distinctive qualities of Plaintiff's famous EVIL DEAD mark 

11 within the meaningofCal. Rus. & Prof. Code §14247. 

12 48. Defendant's conduct has been undertaken with a willful intent to trade 

13 on the reputation of Plaintiff and the reputation of the EVIL DEAD brand, and to 

14 dilute the famous EVIL DEAD mark, thereby entitling Plaintiff to damages and the 

15 other remedies available pursuant Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code§§ 14247, 14250, 

16 including monetary and injunctive relief. 

17 49. Defendanfs adoption and commercial use of a name and mark identical 

18 and confusingly similar to the EVIL DEAD mark in connection with goods and 

19 services identical to those sold and provided by Plaintiff under its EVIL DEAD 

20 mark, and its use of the EVIL DEAD name and mark in connection with the 

21 advertisement and promotion of such go?ds and services, have caused and are 

22 causing immediate and irreparable injury to Plaintiff and will continue to damage 

23 Plaintiff unless enjoined by this Court. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law. 

24 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Renaissance respectfully requests that the Court enter 

2 5 judgment as follows: 

26 l. That judgment be entered for Plaintiff on all of its cJaims; 

27 

28 
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1 2. Defendant, its principles, members, officers, partners, directors, agents, 

2 representatives, successors or assigns, and all persons acting in concert or in 

3 participation with any of them) he immediately and permanently enjoined from: 

II (a) Using the EVIL DEAD name or mark or any derivation or 

5 colorable imitations thereof, or any name or mark that is 

6 confusingly similar thereto, including but not limited to the 

7 names Evil Dead; Evil Dead: Genesis of the Necronomicon; Evil 

B Dead: Genesis ~(the Necronomicon, Part 2; Evil Dead: 

9 Consequences, (collectively, '(Prohibited Names"), as or as part 

1 o of the title of a motion picture or any other work of entertainment 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

?.2 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

or in connection with the promotion, development or production 

of any motion picture or work of entertainment; 

(b) Using the EVIL DEAD name or mark in connection with the 

provision and/or promotion of motion picture promotion, 

development or production services, or any entertainment-related 

goods or services; 

(c) making or employing any other commercial use of any of the 

Prohibited Names; 

(d) representing to third parties by acts of omission or commission 

that Defendant owns rights in the EVIL DEAD name or mark, or 

that Defendant's works are associated with or approved by 

Plaintiff or were created, prepared or distributed with the consent 

or permission of Plaintiff; 

(e) using any other false designation of origin or false description or 

representation or any other thing calculated or likely to cause 

confusion or mistake in the mind of the trade or public or to 

deceive the trade or puhlic into believing that Defendant's 

activities are in any way sponsored, licensed, endorsed, 
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1Fl0017921 I 

authorized by or affiliated or connected with Plaintiff, or 

originate from Plaintiff; 

(f) doing any other acts or things calculated or likely to cause 

confusion or mistake in the mind of the public or to lead 

purchasers or conswners or investors into the belief that the 

products or services promoted, offered or sponsored by 

Defendant emanate from or originate with Plaintiff or its 

licensees, or are somehow sponsored, licensed, endorsed, 

authorized by or affiliated or connected with Plaintiff, or 

originate from Plaintiff; 

(g) further infringing Plaintiffs EVIL DEAD mark and damaging 

Plaintiff's goodwill; 

(h) applying to register the EVIL DEAD mark, or any confusingly 

similar mark, with the USPTO or any other trademark office or 

governmental authority; 

(i) using or registering any of the Prohibited Names as part of any 

domain name, regardless of cctld or gtld, or gtld; 

0) purchasing any of the Prohibited Marks in connection with any 

sponsored advertising on the fntemet or using any of the 

Prohibited Marks in any soutcc code or otherwise using the 

Prohibited Marks such that a search for Plaintiff on the Internet 

will cause any domain name or website of Defendant to appear in 

search results; 

(k) otherwise competing unfairly with Plaintiff or any of its 

authorized licensees in any manner; and 

(l) assisting, aiding, or abetting any other person or business entity in 

engaging in or performing any of the activities referred to in the 

above subparagraphs (a) through (k)~ or effecting any 

16 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 3. 

assignments or transfers, forming new entities or associations or 

utilizing any other device for the purpose of circumventing or 

otherwise avoiding the prohibitions set forth in subparagraphs (a) 

through (k). 

Defendant be required to account for and pay to Plaintiff the profits 

6 attributable to the conduct complained of herein, includjng disgorgement of (a) all 

7 monies paid to Defendant for distribution rights of any movie advertised or promoted 

8 under any name that includes EVIL DEAD; (b) all of Plaintiff's damages arising out 

9 of the acts of unfair competition, false designation of origin and false 8:dvertising 

10 under §43(a) of the Federal Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. § ll25(a) respectively and; 

11 (c) a sum equal to three times Defendant's profits or Plaintiff's damages (whichever 

12 is greater), pursuant to§§ 35{a) and 35(b) of the Federal Trademark Act, 15 U.S.C. 

13 §§ lll7(a)and 1117(b); 

14 4. Defendant be required to pay to Plaintiff the amount of Plaintiffs 

15 damages arising out of Defendant's infringement and unfair competition under the 

16 common law of the State of California and violation of the California Unfair 

17 Business Practices Act, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.; 

18 5. Defendant be required to pay to Plaintiff the amount of PlaintifP s 

19 damages arising out of Defendant's acts of dilution under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code 

20 §§§ 14247, 14250. 

21 6. Defendant be required to pay to Plaintiff exemplary and punitive 

22 damages to deter any further willful infringement as the Court finds appropriate 

23 pursuant to California Civil Code§ 3294 et seq.; 

24 7. Defendant be required to pay to Plaintiff the costs of this action under 

25 §35(a) of the Federal Trademark Act, I 5 U.S.C. § lll7(a); 

2 6 8. Defendant be directed to file with the Court and serve on counsel for 

27 Plaintiff within thirty (30) days after entry of any injunction issued by the Court in 

28 this action, a sworn written statement pursuant to§ 34(a) of the Federal Trademark 

(F100179ll ) 17 



1 Act, 15 U.S.C. § lll6(a), setting forth in detail the manner and form in which 

2 Defendant has complied with any injunction which the Court may enter in this 

3 action; 

4 9. Defendant be directed to pay Plaintiff its reasonable attorneys' fees 

5 along with the ~osts and disbursements incurred herein as a result of Defendant's 

6 intentional and willful infringement, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117; 

7 10. Defendant be directed to pay Plaintiffs interest, including pre-judgment 

8 interest on the foregoing sums pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a) and; 

9 11. A warding and directing such further relief as the Court deems just and 

10 proper. 

11 
Dated: Los Angeles, California 

12 April8o, 2012 
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{f\001?9?.1 ) 

FROSS ZELNICK LEHRMAN 
& ZISSU, P 

hael Chiappt! ·(c ar. No 85256) 
Barbara Solomon (Pro c Vice pending) 
866 United Nations PI za 
New York, New York 10017 
Tel: (212) 813-5900 
Fax: (212) 813-5901 
mc@fzlz.com 
bsolomon@fzlz.com 

Michael D. Roth (Cal. Bar. No. 217464) 
CALDWELL LESLIE & PROCTORt PC 
1000 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 600 
Los Angeles, California 90017-2463 
Tel. {213) 629-9040 
Fax (213) 629-9022 
rmh@caldwell-leslie.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiff Renaissance 
Pictures, Lt 
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1 DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

2 Plaintiff Renaissance Pictures Ltd. hereby demands a jury trial as provided by 

3 Rule 38(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 
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CALDWELL 

LESLIE& 
PROCTOR 

DATED: May 1, 2012 CALDWELL LESLfE & PROCTOR, PC 

-and-

AN & ZISSU, P.C. 

Counsel for Plaintiff Renaissance 
Pictures, Ltd. 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY 

This case has been assigned to District Judge Dale S. Fischer and the assigned discovery 
Magistrate Judge is Jay C. Gandhi. 

The case number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows: 

CV12- 3805 DSF (JCGx) 

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central 
District of California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related 
motions. 

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge 

NOTICE TO COUNSEL 

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is 
filed, a copy of this notice must be served on all plaintiffs). 

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location: 

(X] Western Division 
312 N. Spring St., Rm. G-8 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

U Southern Division 
411 West Fourth St., Rm. 1-053 
Santa Ana, CA 92701-4516 

Failure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being returned to you. 

U Eastern Division 
3470 Twelfth St., Rm. 134 
Riverside, CA 92501 

CV-18 (03/06) NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY 



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

RENAISSANCE PICTURES,LTD. 

v. 

AWARD PICTURES, LLC 

' PLAINTJFP(S) 

DEFENDANT(S) . 

CASE NUMBER 

CV12-380S~ 

SUMMONS 

TO: DEFENDANT(S): ____________ _ 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you 

must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached[][] complaint D amended complaint 
llcounterclaimn cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer 
or motion must be served on the plaintiff's attorney, Michael D. Roth , whose address is 

1000 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 600, Los Angeles, CA 90017-2463 . Ifyou fail to do so, 

judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file 

your answer or motion with the court. 

Clerk, U.S. District Court 

Dated: __ MA_Y_-_2_2_01_2 _ ___ _ By: 

(Seal of the Court) 

{Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United States agency, or is an officer or employee of the United States. Alluwed 

60 day.~ by Rule 12(a)(3)}. 

CV-OIA (12/07) SUMMONS 
CC0-1A 
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Key to Statistical codes relating to Social Security Cases: 
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862 l3L 
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864 SS!n 
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S ubst.anth·c Statcmenl of Cause of Action 

All claims for health insurance benefits (Medicare) under Title 18, Part A, of the Social Security Act, as amended. 
Also, include claims by hospitals, skilled nursing facilities. elc., for certification a:; providers of services under the 
program. (42 U.S.C. l935FF(b)) 

All claims tor "131ack Lung" benefits under Title 4, Part R, of the federal Coal Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969. 
(30 u.s. c. 923) 

All claims filed by insured workers for disability insurance benefits under Title 2 of the Social Security Act, as 
11mcndcd; plus all claim~ filed for child 's insurance bene tit~ based on disability. (42 U.S.C. 405(g)) 

All claims filed for widows or widowers insurance benc(its ba~ed on disability und~r Title 2 of the Social Security 
Act, as amended. (42 U.S.C. 405(g)) 

All clai~ for supplemental security income payment~ based upon disabili ty tiled under Title 16 of the Social Security 
Act, a.~ amended. 

All claims for retirement (old age) and survivo~ benefits under Title 2 o f the Social Security Act, as amended. (42 
u.s.c. (g)) 
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